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U.S. Department of the Interior

National Park Service

San Juan National Historic Site

Fort San Cristdbal
501 Norzagaray St.

Old San Juan, P.R. 00901-2094




Fort San Juan de la Cruz
or El Cafiuelo

Fort San Juan de la Cruz, also known as El
Casiuelo, is located in Cabras’ Island, at the munici-
pality of Toa Alta, specifically in the area of Palo
Seco. It can be seen from Fort San Felipe del Morro
by looking to the west of Austria Bastion. It was
built at the end of the 16th century, first of wood,
and later, between 1608- 1610, was rebuilt in ma-
sonry by order of Govemor Gabriel de Rojas. It
was finished under the rule of Governor Felipe de
Beaumont y Navarra. £ Cafiuelo is a small struc-
ture of about 50 square feet and 15 feet height.
Originally as many as [8 cannons could be placed
in this fort to protect the entrance of the San Juan
Bay as well as the entrance of the Bayamon River.

The main purpose of this fort was to establish a
cross fire, along with Fort San Felipe del Morre, at
the entrance of the San Juan Harbor to avoid any
possibility for Spain’s enemies to effectively dis-
embark and take the city. El Cafivelo was tested
during the Dutch Attack of 1625 perpetrated by
Boudewijn Hendrickz (Balduino Enrico in Spanish
chrenicles). The Fort was submitted by the attack-
ers during the assault, but the Spanish captain
Andrés Botello counter-attacked and bumed E/
Caiivelo until the Dutch left it. This incident almost
destroyed the fort, and it was not until 1647 that it
was restored.

In 1784, Governor Davan said that El Cafiuelo was
reduced to “a little square of little elevation, in poor
conditions, with weak parapets without flanks and
without moat, so it is comparable to a little tower”™,
considered defenseless because of their little garri-
son. Apparently, one of the reasons to abandon El
Cafiuelo were the high cost of maintenance.

At first, the Fort was built in a small rocky island
totally surrounded by water. But the U. S. Army
Corps of Engineers decided to fill in the little is-
lands to create a large artificial peninsula that we
know today as Cabras” Island, to use it as part of

their rnactal defences

Today, Fort San Juan de la . is part of the San Juan
National Historic Site, and since 1983 recognized by
UNESCO, along with La Fortaleza, the City Walls,
Fort San Felipe del Morro and Fort San Cristébal as a

World Heritage.
For additional information, picase contact the Culiural

Resources Management Division through (787) 729-6777,
ext. 260, 261, 267, 230 or 248.

Fortin San Juan de la Cruz

o El Carniuelo

El Fortin de San Juan de la Cruz, conocide también
como El Cafiuelo, esta localizade en Isla de Cabras en
¢l municipio de Toa Alta, especificamente en el 4rea de
Palo Seco. Puede verse desde el Castillo de San Felipe
del Moo mirando hacia el oeste. Fue construido a
finales del siglo X VI primero en madera , y luego para
1608— 1610, comenzd a construirse en mamposteria
por érdenes del gobernador Gabriel de Rojas. Fue ter-
minado bajo la gobernacién de Felipe de Beaumont y
Navarra. El Caiiuelo es una pequefia estructura de 50
pies cuadrades y |5 pies de altura. Originalmente se
podian apostar en é| hasta 18 cafiones para proteger la
entrada de la bahia de San Juan asi como la entrada del
Rio Bayarnon.

Fert San Juan de la Cruz or El Cafiuelo viewed from the
sea prior to the intervention of the Corps of Engineers.

Vista desde ¢l mar del Fertin San Juan de la Cruz o El
Cailuelo antes de la intervencién del Cuerpo de Ingenieros.

El proposito fundamental del fortin wablecer
fuego cruzado, junto al Castillo de San Felipe del
Morro, para evitar cualguier posibilidad a los enemigos
de Espafia de efectuar un desembarco y tomar la ciudad
de San Juan. El Cafiuelo fue puesto a prueba durante ¢l
ataque holandés de 1625 al mando de Boudewijn
Hendrickz (Balduino Enrico).

El fortin fue tomado por los invasores durante el ata-
que, pero el capitan espafiol Andrés Botello contraataco
e incendio El Cafiuelo hasta que los invasores desocu-
paron el fortin. Este ataque dej6 el fuerte casi destruido,
y no fue hasta 1647 que se llevo a cabo su restauracion
en mamposteria.

Para 1784 el gobemador Davan dijo que el fortin estaba
reducido a “un pequefio cuadrado de poca elevacidn,
muy maltratado, de débiles parapetos sin flancos ni
posos, de manera que es comparable a una torre baja”,
por lo que se consideraba indefenso por su escasa guar-
nicion. Aparentemente el alto costo de mantenimiento
fue uno de los motivos para su abandono.

En sus inicios, el fortin de San Juan de la Cruz fue con-
struido en un pequefio cayo totalmente rodeado de
agua. Pero el Cuerpo de Ingenieros del Ejército de
Estados Unidos decidié retlenar los pequefios cayos
£ercanos para crear una peninsula artificial, la que hoy
conocemos como Isla de Cabras, para utilizarla como
parte de sus defensas en el puerto de San Juan.

Hoy dia el Fortin de San Juan de la Cruz es parte del
Sitio Histérico Nacional, y desde 1983 nombrado por la
UNESCO junto al Palacio de Santa Catalina (La For-
taleza), el Castillo de San Felipe det Morro, el Castillo
de San Cristébal y las murallas que rodean la ciudad
antigua de San Juan como Patrimonio Mundial.

Para mas informacién favor de contactar a la Division de
Manejo de Recursos Culturales al teléfono (787) 7296777,
ext.2¥3,29%, 150,253 vy 256.



